
MINUTES OF MEETING

OF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THE STATE OF TEXAS §

§
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

§
BELVEDERE MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT §

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Belvedere Municipal Utility District was
held on February 27, 2018, in accordance with the duly posted notice of said meeting. The roll
was called of the members of the Board of Directors, to-wit:

Peter Golde President

Donal Sartain Vice President

Ronald Ubertini Secretary/Treasurer
Kim Clifford Assistant Secretary
James Koerner Assistant Secretary

All members of the Board were present, except for Director Sartain, thus constituting a
quorum of the Board of Directors. All directors present voted on all matters that came before the
Board. Also in attendance were Jeff Monzingo with Montoya 8l Monzingo, LLP; Stefanie
Albright and Troupe Brewer, Attorneys, andLissette Ruiz, Legal Assistant, with Lloyd Gosselink
Rochelle and Townsend, P.C.; Bryce Canady with Murfee Engineering Company; Bob West with
West, Davis and Company, LLP; and Tom Wiles was present on behalf of the Belvedere
Homeowners Association (HOA).

Director Golde called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. and stated the Board would first
receive public comment. Mr. Wiles addressed the Board and asked for a follow-up from previous
discussions regarding Lot 51 and the missing game fence. Mr. Wiles askedwho the HOA should
contact to move forward with this matter. Mr. Canady stated the game fence was determined to
be theproperty of the HOA andrecommended the HOA contact Travis County andthattheDistrict
would have to approve any action from a drainage standpoint. Director Golde asked Mr. Canady
to assist the HOA with lie preparation of the appropriate documentation for submission with
Travis County. Mr. Canady stated he would reach out to Travis County and report at the next
meeting.

The next item before the Board was to discuss, consider, and take action to approve the
minutes of the January 16,2018 regular meeting andJanuary 24, 2018 special meeting, provided
as Exhibit A. Director Koerner had an edit to the second paragraph of page 4 regarding the Joint
Maintenance Agreement ("JMA") with the HOA. Upon motion by Director Koerner, seconded
by Director Ubertini, and unanimously carried by the Board members present, the Board
approved the January 16, 2018 regular meeting and January 24, 2018 special meeting
minutes, as amended.

7588382



The next item before the Board was to consider the bookkeeper's report, including, but not
limited to, payment of invoices. Mr. Monzingo addressed the Board and reviewed the
Bookkeeper's report, provided as Exhibit B. Mr. Monzingo stated a transfer of $157,977.94 from
property taxes would be made to the debt service fund, and after the payment of the invoices the
operating fund balance would be approximately $600,000. Mr. Monzingo stated the budget was
tracking as planned and that 89.97% of the property taxes had been collected, with $74,000
outstanding. Director Koemer asked if the collection rate was on target, to which Mr. Monzingo
stated it was slightly lower as compared to his other district clients. He stated his report provided
the figures through the end of January, so taxes not yet paid were late. Upon motion by Director
Clifford, seconded by Director Koerner, and unanimously carried by the Board members
present, the Board approved the Bookkeeper's report, transfers, and payment of invoices.

Director Golde stated the Board would next consider the Report on the Application of
Certain Agreed Upon Procedures relating to Belvedere Municipal Utility District $1,220,000
Unlimited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2018 (Reimbursement Audit) provided as Exhibit C. Mr. West
addressed the Board and provided an overview of his findings. Mr. West noted the total
reimbursed cost due to the developer was $769,517. He stated he reviewed the appraisal report
for the Amenity Center and cancelled checks for Phases 1 and 2 of the trails. Mr. West directed
the Board to column six, page three of the Reimbursement Audit where he reconciled the amount
to be paid versus what had been approved by the TCEQ and noted a net difference of $5,096,
which would go to the District's capital projects fund. Director Clifford referred to column five
of page three and asked if the $210,000 for the Amenity Center and $40,000 for the trails had to
be spent that way. Mr. Monzingo stated that while the District had money that would go back to
theoperating fundwhichcouldbe spenton anyproject, thosespecifically itemizedfundsin column
five, pagethreemustbe usedas allocated. Next,Mr. Westnoteda tax issueraised by bond counsel
over trail repairs that occurred over three years ago and which were paid by the District. Bond
counsel recommended the amount being reimbursed to the District's general operating account be
reduced by either the lesser of 5% of the bonds or $100,000. It was determined to reduce that
amount by approximately $5,000, such funds then going to the District's capital projects fund
rather than the operating fund. Mr. West stated there would be $385 in excess fiands which could
be included in the proposed surplus funds application to TCEQ to authorize those funds for
expenditure. Mr. Monzingo distributed a handout, provided as Exhibit D. which identified the
disbursements from the bond proceeds and which reconciled with Mr. West's schedules provided
in his Reimbursement Audit. Mr. West stated that bond counsel had provided a closing and post-
closing memo which also reconciled with this Reimbursement Audit. Director Golde noted that
there had been a third revision of the memos prepared by bond counsel that he had not received
and was unclear on what additional changes had been made. Following discussion, it was
confirmed by DirectorGolde that the third version of the memo was the version he reviewed, and
no other changes had been made.

Director Ubertini asked if the $769,517 due to the developer would be wired the next day,
or would the District need a conveyance agreement beforehand, to which Ms. Albright said a
utility conveyance agreement from the developer, an easement grant from the HOA, and insurance
would need to be put in place before those funds could be dispersed. Director Ubertini stated the
District should not release the funds until the required documents were signed and received.
Director Ubertini asked if the developer owed taxes on the Amenity Center to which Ms. Albright

7588382



stated she was not sure who paid those taxes and that the Travis County Appraisal District would
need to be contacted to verify. Ms. Albright stated she would follow-up with Tom Wiles and Kim
Bigley to determine if the Amenity Center property had already been conveyed to the HOA and,
if so, then only the easement would be needed. Further, Ms. Albright stated she would review the
bond application to confirm facilities to be conveyed to the District versus what was to be conveyed
to the HOA, and would ensure that the conveyance agreement clearly identified what was being
used with bond funds. Director Golde noted that in his review of the appraisal, the mail kiosks
had been included, to which Director Clifford stated that meant the structure over the mailboxes.
Ms. Albright stated she would review the bond application and that the remaining close-out items
could be done within the next two meetings.

Director Golde noted several issues he became aware of through the Reimbursement Audit
which he wanted to be sure all of the Board Members were also aware : 1) the amount due to the
developer was less than previously estimated; and 2) the amount to the District's operating fund
was greater than previously estimated. The engineering report included with the bond application
had shown two trail repairs as paid by the developer, but were actually paid by the District, an
error that Mr. West discovered in his review of the cancelled checks. Thus, an extra $65,000 was
allocated to the District's general fund from the bond proceeds. The Board thanked Mr. West for
his diligence. Director Golde stated the surplus was bigger and along the same lines, Mr. West
mentioned the overage of bond costs was due in large part to two incorrect numbers. The
underwriters discount was 40% too high and the bond issuance costs was too low by 50% which
cancelled each other out by $5,000. Director Golde wanted the Board to be aware of the
discrepancies. Director Clifford asked if this would have any net effect on the bottom line from
the bond sale, to which Mr. West stated no. Director Golde reviewed several aspects of the Federal
Tax Certificate for the Board's information including that the District was required to have a
bindingobligation in place within six months of bond closing, and noted further that there was a
three year requirement to spend the bondmoney. Upon motion by Director Koerner, seconded
by Director Ubertini, and unanimously carried by the Board members present, the Board
approved the Report on the Application of Certain Agreed Upon Procedures related to
Belvedere Municipal Utility District SI,220,000 Unlimited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2018 and
authorized the District's Bookkeeper to make disbursements consistent with said Report
subject to holding proceeds to the developer until closing requirements were met.

Mr. West commented he had not receivedpayment for the annual financial report, to which
Mr. Monzingo stated it had beenplacedin themail following the January 16,2018 Boardmeeting.
The Board authorized Mr. Monzingo to stop payment of the mailed check and issue new check to
Mr. West for the annual financial report.

The next item before the Board was to discuss, consider, and take action regarding a report
from the District's Engineer. Mr. Canady directed the Board to the proposed Agreement for
Provision of Limited Professional Services for Surplus Funds Application to TCEQ, provided as
Exhibit E. Director Clifford asked if the Board had determined what the surplus funds would be
used for, to which Ms. Albright replied that the funds could only be used for drainage or water-
related expenses. Director Clifford stated the estimated costassociated with filing the application
to use $92,000 was approximately $12,000, and askedwhat would be the risk if the Districtspent
the surplus funds without TCEQ approval. Ms. Albright stated she would have to look into this

7588382



but the District risked the misuse of public funds and any associated liability. Director Clifford
said it would not be worth the risk. Mr. Canady stated he did not anticipate going over the $12,000
estimation. Director Clifford asked if the Terms and Conditions were consistent with the Terms

and Conditions in the general contract with Murfee Engineering, to which Mr. Canady stated the
Terms and Conditions would be updated if necessary following review. Director Clifford asked if
including the additional $385 surplus would change the amount to process the application. Mr.
Canady stated the agreement was priced based on a surplus funds application, not the amount of
the surplus funds. Upon motion by Director Koerner, seconded by Director Ubertini, and
unanimously carried by the Board members present, the Board approved the Agreement for
Provision of Limited Professional Services for Surplus Funds Application to TCEQ with
substitution of the Terms and Conditions.

Next, the Board discussed the new proposed site plan, provided as Exhibit F. Director
Golde noted the location of the septic line for Mr. Canady's consideration. Mr. Canady stated he
would note the anticipated conflict with the septic and confirm its location via survey, but that
according to the CAD drawing, the proposed site was further away. Director Golde also noted a
fiber optic cable that ran to Kim Bigley's office. Mr. Canady stated he had reached out to Travis
County and was waiting for a response on the next steps. Mr. Canady next directed the Board to
the proposed cost estimates, provided as Exhibit G. Director Clifford asked if lighting and
landscapingcosts had been included, to which Mr. Canady said no. A discussion ensued regarding
the lighting, landscaping plan, and material of the new parking lot. Mr. Canady stated the site plan
provided as Exhibit F included 14 parking spaces to also include room for handicapped parking
and loading and wheelchair access. Mr. Canady requested authorization to move forward with
ordering the survey so the HOA and MUD could review. Director Clifford requested the surveyors
stay away from the large oak tree when staking the storage building, to which Mr. Canady stated
this was preliminary staking and he would keep the tree in mind. Mr. Canady recommended
authorization to move forward with Task 3 and partially Task 4. Director Ubertini asked if the
contract combined both projects, the parking lot and storage building, to which Mr. Canady stated
yes. Director Ubertini stated the District could not move forward without knowing how it would
pay for each project. Director Golde requested a new agenda item at the next meeting to formally
determine payment for each project.

Mr. Wiles addressed the Board and asked why the $250,000 was not all for the Amenity
Center projects. Director Clifford stated at the time, the District thought it could spend the $92,000
in surplus funds, and it was a combination of misunderstanding and underestimation of costs of
the Amenity Center projects. A discussion ensued regarding the costs of the projects and whether
bids would need to be received, to which Mr. Canady stated based on the amount, the project
would need to be advertised. Mr. Wiles stated there was a disconnect between the HOA and MUD

regarding the status of the projects. Mr. Canady stated it was his understanding there would be a
subcommittee formed by the MUD and the HOA for coordination purposes, and that it would be
helpful to have the subcommittee for him to communication between Board meetings. Director
Ubertini stated he and Director Sartain would be responsible for reaching out to the HOA and
requested Mr. Wiles provide them with the HOA subcommittee members' names to arrange a
meeting between the two groups. Mr. Wiles noted the HOA budgeted $70,000 in its 2018 budget
for landscaping project. Director Golde stated that based on previous discussions with District
consultants, the Board had been advised that the bond proceeds could be used for the landscaping

7588382



areas around the parking lot and storage building. Director Golde stated there would be an agenda
item to allocate costs and next steps, but that in the meantime, some of the preliminary engineering
by Murfee Engineering could be complete. Upon motion by Director Koerner, seconded by
Director Ubertini, and unanimously carried by the Board members present, the Board
approved Murfee Engineering to proceed with Tasks 3 and 4 of the Agreement for the
Amenity Center Improvements.

Director Clifford asked for the status of the berms discussed at previous meetings. Mr.
Canady stated his office had prepared a draft letter to Dan Ryan inquiring regarding the removal
of the berms. The Board authorized Mr. Canady to send the letter, which would be included in the
next meeting's packet.

The next item before the Board was to discuss, consider and take action regarding the May
5,2018 Directors election, including Declaration ofUnopposed Candidates and Cancellation. Ms.
Albright stated all three incumbents and no others timely filed and the District could proceed with
ordering the cancellation of election which would be posted at each election polling place on
election day by Travis County. Upon motion by Director Clifford, seconded by Director
Koerner, and unanimously carried by the Board members present, the Board approved the
Order Declaring the Result of Uncontested Election and Order Cancelling the May 5, 2018
Directors Election.

Director Golde asked the Board to keep in mind that Director Sartain wanted other
members in the community to have an opportunity to serve on the MUD Board and that they should
look to appoint someone to fill Director Sartain's position in the future.

The next item before the Board was to discuss, consider, and take action on the JMA
between the District and the HOA. Ms. Albright distributed a revised draft of the agreement,
provided as Exhibit H. which incorporated edits that she received from Directors Koerner and
Clifford. The Board discussed the controls over the funds to be provided by the District to the
HOA, specifically focusing on the suggestion for the HOA to open and maintain a separate bank
account for those funds. Ms. Albright stated the JMA called for heightened controls and oversight
since the District is transferring public funds to the HOA for the maintenance of the District's
property. To that end, it was Ms. Albright's recommendation to have a separate bank account to
avoid co-mingling of funds and to easily track expenses at year's end. Director Ubertini asked if
this could be done through the annual budgeting process based on the nine line items provided in
the Amenity Center and Landscaping Cost Sharing Agreement spreadsheet, provided as Exhibit
I. Director Ubertini recommended at year's end reviewing the HOA's budget versus actual to
determine if the $72,211 was used/reasonable. A discussion ensued regarding the maintenance
items and repairs that would be covered by the JMA and items that would not be covered, such as
pool maintenance. Ms. Albright stated the agreement provided general language regarding
operations, maintenance, and repairs, and if there was a project over $25,000 it would be outside
the JMA. Director Clifford stated the reserve studies discussed painting of the amenity center and
sealant of the floors and how those types of tasks were not covered by the JMA. Director Ubertini
asked how the District could keep the contract as simple as possible while still being in compliance.
Director Koerner stated he wanted the contract to have flexibility as well. Ms. Albright asked the
Board to review the revised redline she distributed and she would provide the revised draft to the

7588382



HOA's attorney for review. Director Clifford asked why the reference to trails was included, to
which Ms. Albright replied the District would be doing away with the JMA currently in place, and
Director Golde added that the trails needed to be maintained under the new agreement. Director
Clifford stated based on the current draft, it was unclear who was maintaining the trail system.
Director Koemer recommended Director Clifford provide language to Ms. Albright to remedy the
confusing language and to make the agreement clearer. Director Koerner requested an electronic
copy of the revised draft to provide additional comments. Director Koerner asked if there was a
need to have the HOA set-up a separate bank account, to which Ms. Albright stated that was her
recommendation but that she would follow-up with Bob West to confirm. The Board requested a
revised draft for review at the next meeting.

Director Golde stated the next item before the Board was to discuss, consider, and take
action on Texas Municipal League (TML) insurance coverage for District facilities, Directors, and
volunteers. Ms. Albright stated her office had contacted TML regarding covering the amenity
center and was waiting on a proposal to present to the Board.

There being no further business and upon motion made by Director Clifford,
seconded by Director Ubertini, and unanimously carried, the meeting adjourned at 8:31 p.m.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 20th day of March, 2018.

Ronald Ubertini, Secretary

7588382



EXHIBIT A 

  



 

 1 
7569195_2  

MINUTES OF MEETING 

OF 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS      § 

        § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS     § 

        §  

BELVEDERE MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT  § 

 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Belvedere Municipal Utility District was 

held on January 16, 2018, in accordance with the duly posted notice of said meeting.  The roll was 

called of the members of the Board of Directors, to-wit: 

 

    Peter Golde  President 

    Donal Sartain  Vice President 

    Ronald Ubertini Secretary/Treasurer 

    Kim Clifford  Assistant Secretary 

    James Koerner  Assistant Secretary 

 

All members of the Board were present, thus constituting a quorum of the Board of 

Directors.  All directors present voted on all matters that came before the Board.  Also in 

attendance were Stefanie Albright with Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle and Townsend, P.C.; Garry 

Kimball, with Specialized Public Finance, Inc.; Clayton Chandler with McCall, Parkhurst & 

Horton LLP, and Lee Blanton and Tom Wiles were present on behalf of the Belvedere 

Homeowners Association.  

 

Director Golde called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and stated the Board would first 

receive public comment.  There were no public comments received.   

 

Director Golde stated the Board would take items out of order and the Board would first 

consider and take action on Bond Issue No. 4 regarding recreational facilities, including 

consideration and action with respect to receiving bids and awarding sale of the $1,220,000 

Belvedere Municipal Utility District Unlimited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2018.  Mr. Kimball stated 

he was happy with the bids at 3.21% bond rating at A3 and recommend awarding the bid to 

Raymond James and Associates.  Mr. Kimball stated the closing date was scheduled for February 

27, 2018. Upon motion by Director Clifford, seconded by Director Ubertini, and unanimously 

carried, the Board approved awarding the bid to Raymond James and Associates. 
 

The next item before the Board was to discuss, consider, and take action regarding the 

Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of $1,220,000 Unlimited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2018; 

Prescribing the Terms and Provisions Thereof; Making Provision for the Payment of the Interest 

Thereon and the Principal Thereof; Levying and Pledging the Proceeds of a Tax; Approving an 

Official Statement; Authorizing the Sale of the Bonds; Authorizing a Paying Agent/Registrar 

Agreement; and Containing Other Provisions Relating to the Subject, provided as Exhibit A.  

Upon motion by Director Clifford, seconded by Director Koerner, and unanimously carried, 



 

 2 
7569195_2  

the Board approved the Resolution subject to final approval by the Board President. Mr. 

Chandler stated he would update the Resolution with the comments previously provided and the 

pricing terms received at the meeting. 

 

The next item before the Board was to discuss, consider and take action to adopt Order 

Calling Directors Election and authorize publication of notice.  The Board discussed a November 

versus May election.  Upon motion by Director Sartain, seconded by Director Ubertini, and 

unanimously carried, the Board approved the Order Calling the May 5, 2018 Election, 

provided as Exhibit B. 
 

Director Golde stated the Board would next consider the execution of the Joint Election 

Agreement with Political Subdivisions in Travis County.  Upon motion by Director Koerner, 

seconded by Director Sartain, and unanimously carried, the Board authorized the President 

to execute the Joint Election Agreement. 

 

The next item before the Board was to discuss, consider and take action as necessary 

concerning the audit of the District’s financial records for the period ending September 30, 2017, 

provided as Exhibit C.  Upon motion by Director Clifford, seconded by Director Ubertini, 

and unanimously carried, the Board approved the audit of the District’s financial records 

for the period ending September 30, 2017, with changes suggested by Director Clifford that 

she would convey to Mr. West. 
 

Director Golde stated the next item before the Board was to discuss, consider and take 

action as necessary concerning report from the District’s Bookkeeper, including but not limited to, 

payment of invoices, provided as Exhibit D.  Upon motion by Director Koerner, seconded by 

Director Sartain, and unanimously carried, the Board approved the Bookkeeper’s Report, 

as presented, including payment of invoices.  

 

The agenda items not addressed in the meeting were deferred to the next meeting of the 

Board of Directors. 

 

There being no further business and upon motion made by Director Clifford, 

seconded by Director Koerner, and unanimously carried, the meeting adjourned at 6:32 p.m.    

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS ____ day of February, 2018. 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

Ronald Ubertini, Secretary 



 

 1 
7562025  

MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 

OF 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS      § 

        § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS     § 

        §  

BELVEDERE MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT  § 

 

A special meeting of the Board of Directors of Belvedere Municipal Utility District was 

held on January 24, 2018, in accordance with the duly posted notice of said meeting.  The roll 

was called of the members of the Board of Directors, to-wit: 

 

    Peter Golde  President 

    Donal Sartain  Vice President 

    Ronald Ubertini Secretary/Treasurer 

    Kim Clifford  Assistant Secretary 

    James Koerner  Assistant Secretary 

 

All members of the Board were present, except for Directors Sartain and Clifford, thus 

constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors.  All directors present voted on all matters that 

came before the Board.  Also in attendance were Jeff Monzingo with Montoya & Monzingo, 

LLP; Stefanie Albright and Troupe Brewer, Attorneys, and Lissette Ruiz, Legal Assistant, with 

Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle and Townsend, P.C.; Bryce Canady, with Murfee Engineering 

Company; Clayton Chandler with McCall, Parkhurst & Horton LLP, and Tom Wiles was present 

on behalf of the Belvedere Homeowners Association (“HOA”).  

 

Director Golde called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. and stated the Board would first 

receive public comment.  There were no public comments received. 

 

Director Golde stated the Board would next consider the approval of the minutes of the 

December 19, 2017 regular meeting, provided as Exhibit A.  Upon motion by Director 

Koerner, seconded by Director Ubertini, and unanimously carried by the Board members 

present, the Board approved the December 19, 2017 regular meeting minutes. 
 

The next item before the Board was to consider the bookkeeper’s report, including, but 

not limited to, payment of invoices.  Mr. Monzingo distributed a revised bookkeeper’s report, 

provided as Exhibit B, and stated the invoice for legal services was the only invoice requiring 

approval at this time.  Mr. Monzingo noted the Attorney General bond expense in the amount of 

$1,220 which he stated would be reimbursed to the District from the bond proceeds. Mr. 

Monzingo also noted that there were four bond payments made (interest only) and that to date, 

the District had collected 57.77% of owed property taxes.  Upon motion by Director Koerner, 

seconded by Director Ubertini, and unanimously carried by the Board members present, 

the Board approved the bookkeeper’s report and payment of the invoice for legal services.  
 



 

 2 
7562025  

Director Golde stated the next item before the Board was to discuss, consider, and take 

action regarding a report from the District’s Engineer.  Mr. Canady directed the Board to the 

Agreement for the Provision of Limited Professional Services regarding the Belvedere Amenity 

Center Improvements, provided as Exhibit C.  Mr. Canady discussed the various tasks identified 

in the Agreement and provided a proposed site plan, provided as Exhibit D, and requested the 

Board review and provide feedback on the locations of the proposed storage building and 

parking lot.  He also requested feedback on a new walking trail from the new parking area back 

to the building.  Mr. Canady stated he wanted to make sure everyone agreed this was the 

preferred layout and that there were no significant changes to the location or scope of the storage 

building and parking lot.  Director Ubertini asked if the proposal included the maximum amount 

of possible parking spaces that could be included.  Director Golde stated that the original sketch, 

which Dan Ryan worked off of, had one additional space.  Director Ubertini stated the District 

wanted to maximize the parking.  Director Golde agreed that another space could be added 

assuming there was no design issue related to including one additional space.  Mr. Canady stated 

he would review the turn radius to determine if another space could be added.  In reviewing the 

tasks identified in Exhibit C, Mr. Canady stated Task 1 showed an estimate of $0 since that task 

was effectively completed.  Mr. Canady asked the Board to review the proposed site plan and 

provide any comments.  Director Golde stated he did not expect any changes would need to be 

made unless Murfee Engineering recommended something.  Director Ubertini asked about the 

size of the storage facility and specifically if it was the size that was originally proposed, to 

which Mr. Canady responded it was and that the building was 801 square feet.  

 

In regards to Task 2, Mr. Canady stated he would take feedback from the drawings and 

then conduct an accurate reading of the site plan in person.  Mr. Canady stated he obtained 

information on the permitting requirements and determined that there would be no U.S. Fish and 

Wildlife Service review required, only approval from Travis County and possibly a small permit 

application fee to Balcones Canyon Preserve.  Task 3 would provide the approved site plan to the 

Travis County for review.  At that point, a geotechnical specialist would be brought in regarding 

the parking lot and foundation for the storage building in order to provide background 

information on soils and structural stability and provide input on the design of the foundation as 

well as on the asphalt design for the parking lot.  Mr. Canady stated he understood the District 

wanted all new construction to match the existing structures/parking lot as much as possible.  

Director Ubertini stated the parking lot should be pervious.  Director Golde agreed and stated 

that Dan Ryan said it would absolutely have to be permeable pavement.  Mr. Canady stated 

based on his calculations, the parking lot would be under ½ acre so it would not have to be 

pervious if the District did not want it to be.  Mr. Canady stated he thought Dan Ryan stated that 

the overall permeability limit of 15% applied to the whole subdivision.  Director Ubertini stated 

the District would have to follow the standard lot requirement per the Architectural Control 

Committee (ACC).  Director Golde noted the point Lee Blanton made at the last meeting that the 

ACC had their own requirements, too, and that it does not have to be pervious.  The ACC’s 

requirements pertain specifically to a limit of impervious cover for each lot and, if exceeded, 

pervious pavers would be required. 

 

A discussion ensued regarding Task 4, and the Board stated that the ACC requirements 

should be followed.  Mr. Canady stated that, based on his analysis, the buildings on site and the 

pool were 17% impervious.  Director Ubertini stated the square footage limit was applied per 



 

 3 
7562025  

ACC rules.  Mr. Canady stated he would go back to what is in place, what is proposed, and what 

is pervious.  Director Koerner asked if pervious would be more expensive than impervious, to 

which Director Golde replied yes.  After review of Task 5, Mr. Canady stated his office 

estimated a 15-month window of completion from approval of Task 1 and, once the layout was 

agreed upon, they could begin work immediately with a signed agreement.  The next step would 

be for the Board to interview architects and review and approve the site plan for submission to 

Travis County.  Mr. Canady stated Murfee Engineering would manage the tasks they were 

presenting and would work with the architect.  

 

Director Koerner asked if the black line on the proposed site plan was the lot line and 

asked if the District would be acquiring the lot.  Ms. Albright stated they would need a lease in 

place from the HOA.  Director Ubertini asked if the District owned the parking lot, to which Ms. 

Albright stated the District owned the lot, but not the land under, similar to the trails.  Director 

Ubertini asked if the District needed to go back and do the math on all of the projects.  Director 

Golde stated the only estimate they had was Dan Ryan’s rough estimation.  Mr. Canady stated it 

would be nice to have a surveyor come out and that his office could provide preliminary cost 

estimates without a designer, but it would be better to work through the numbers first and get a 

more precise estimate.  Director Ubertini asked how much of a commitment the District wanted 

to make, and Director Koerner asked if they could approve the agreement without having the 

bond proceeds.  Ms. Albright stated the District would be authorizing Murfee Engineering to 

move forward as if it was part of the bonded project, and clarified that the District would be 

reimbursed from the bond proceeds for that work by Murfee.  Mr. Chandler asked if these costs 

were soft costs, to which Ms. Albright stated yes.  Director Golde stated the District had 

expected operating funds to be used in addition to bond proceed funds.  Ms. Albright stated the 

MEC work order was part of the overall contract and recommended that the Board could 

authorize the work order through Task 2, but, before Murfee Engineering moved forward with 

Task 3, additional Board approval would be required.  Upon motion by Director Koerner, 

seconded by Director Ubertini, and unanimously carried by the Board members present, 

the Board approved the Agreement with Murfee Engineering, through Task 2, provided as 

Exhibit C. 

 

Director Golde stated the Board would break at 6:32 p.m. for signatures on bond 

documents previously approved at the January 16, 2018 Regular Board Meeting. 

 

The Board reconvened at 6:43 p.m. 

 

The next item before the Board was to discuss, consider and take action regarding 

expenditure of the $92,000 in the capital account for drainage facilities.  Ms. Albright stated that 

the issue with the $92,000 is the fact that those monies were comprised of bond proceeds from 

three separate bond issuances, and there was not a way to show which funds were tied to which 

projects/bonds and thus it was her recommendation to go to TCEQ for approval.  Mr. Chandler 

stated under state bond law, the funds could be used for a bonded project, but it would be safest 

going to TCEQ for approval.  Mr. Canady stated he and David Malish had discussed this 

internally, and after hearing discussions regarding water and drainage, they also recommended 

the District seek TCEQ approval.  Director Koerner asked what the cost would be to seek TCEQ 

approval.  Mr. Monzingo stated he would be the one to write the letter, and Mr. Canady stated he 



 

 4 
7562025  

would provide a ballpark number after conferring with Mr. Malish.  Director Golde asked if the 

District could file one overall approval—all for drainage, to which Ms. Albright replied yes.  Ms. 

Albright stated it would primarily be an engineering project.   

 

Director Golde stated the next item before the Board was to discuss, consider and take 

action regarding the May 5, 2018 Directors Election.  Ms. Albright stated this would be a 

placeholder item for the next few agendas and reminded the Board that applications for a place 

on the ballot were due by 5:00 p.m. on February 16, 2018.  If at that point only three applications 

were received, the election could be cancelled.  If there were more than three applications 

received, the election would proceed and the last day for a candidate to withdraw would be 

February 23, 2018.  Director Koerner asked what the rules were for a Board member to solicit 

residents to run and whether the Board should be advertising the election.  Ms. Albright stated 

the Board should be mindful to avoid a “walking quorum,” and that the proper notice was posted 

on the HOA website as well as the bulletin boards near the mailboxes.  Ms. Albright stated her 

office would send a reminder prior to the 5:00 p.m. February 16, 2018 filing deadline.  

 

The next item before the Board was to discuss, consider, and take action as necessary on 

the Joint Management Agreement (JMA) between the HOA and the District.  Director Koerner 

distributed a handout, provided as Exhibit E, which identified the eight (8) principles of the new 

JMA with the HOA.  Director Koerner stated the agreement should be straightforward and 

flexible, and allow the HOA to sign in certain circumstances without District Board approval.  

Next, Director Koerner distributed the draft Amenity Center and Landscaping Cost Sharing 

Agreement handout, provided as Exhibit F, which estimated $72,211 to be paid annually by the 

District to the HOA with approximately $47,000 to be prorated for the current year.  Ms. 

Albright stated in regards to insurance coverage, the HOA would likely have insurance coverage 

for activities held at the Amenity Center, but the District will likely need general liability 

coverage.  Ms. Albright stated her office would follow-up with TML for a proposal.  Director 

Ubertini stated the District’s intent was to pay for insurance, whether or not the policy name was 

in the District.  Director Koerner stated as part of the budget process, the District has kept a 

contingency under the “maintenance” line item and asked for clarity on what type of 

“maintenance” would be covered.  Director Ubertini suggested having a list defining the items 

the District would pay and the items the HOA would pay for.  Ms. Albright stated that the 

agreement would need to be clear on which funds were being provided to the HOA, and to 

ensure adequate controls are in place as to amounts that could trigger competitive bidding; but 

for insurance, the District could file a claim consistent with the coverage of the facilities.  Ms. 

Albright stated she would discuss with the HOA’s attorney the “controls” in the agreement that 

would lay out what the funds could be used for specifically, and recommend receiving reports 

from the HOA on expenditures.  Ms. Alright also suggested that since the District is smaller and 

interacts more with the HOA, that it might be worth it to have a subcommittee in place that deals 

with facilities management, with two Board members appointed.  Director Ubertini suggested 

reports on an annual basis of the record/bookkeeping and requested a draft JMA from Ms. 

Albright to be provided at the February Board meeting.  Ms. Albright stated she would follow-up 

with the HOA’s attorney and provide a draft for the Board’s review at the next meeting.  

 



 

 5 
7562025  

Directors Koerner and Ubertini stated they would not be available for the February 20, 

2018 Board meeting, to which Ms. Albright stated the Board could push the meeting out one 

week. 

 

Director Golde stated the next item before the Board was to discuss, consider and take 

action on update from Texas Municipal League insurance coverage for District facilities, 

Directors, and volunteers.  Ms. Albright directed the Board to Exhibit G and stated the workers’ 

compensation coverage would be $324 annually and would cover 100 volunteer hours.  There is 

a base amount of $200 which is standard for workers’ compensation coverage.  Upon motion by 

Director Koerner, seconded by Director Ubertini, and unanimously carried by the Board 

members present, the Board approved the TML proposal for workers’ compensation 

coverage.  Director Golde asked if the hours could be changed in the future, to which Ms. 

Albright stated yes. 

 

 The next item before the Board was to discuss, consider and take action as necessary 

concerning potential District acquisition of road powers.  Ms. Albright stated this item should be 

discussed in April, after primary elections, and that she would provide a cost proposal at that 

time. Ms. Albright stated another benefit of going to the legislature to acquire road powers 

(versus the TCEQ) is the Board could attempt to change their election to the uniform date in 

November which would save the District money.  Director Ubertini asked, if they were 

successful in moving to November, could the new members’ terms extend to November, to 

which Ms. Albright stated not without amending the law that created the District and that the 

terms are set by statute where the term ends in May with holdover until November.  

 

 Next, Director Golde stated he wanted to clarify on his comments at the last Board 

meeting whereby he said the costs would be “trivial” and that his point was that in the reserve 

study there is an annual amount that needed to be in the fund based on scheduled repairs and the 

most it ever got to is $1 million which is the minimum threshold in terms of selling bonds.   

 

 Next, Mr. Canady stated he had two follow-up items from the last meeting in regards to 

the game fence, which would not cause any drainage issues; the District would need approval 

from Travis County for any construction over a drainage easement.  The second follow up item 

was not brought up after discussion of the fence.  

 

There being no further business and upon motion made by Director Koerner, 

seconded by Director Sartain, and unanimously carried by the Board members present, the 

meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m.    

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS _____ day of February, 2018. 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

Ronald Ubertini, Secretary 



EXHIBIT B 

  





































EXHIBIT C 

  



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report on the Application of 

Certain Agreed Upon Procedures 
 

relating to 
 

Belvedere Municipal Utility District 
 
 

$1,220,000 Unlimited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WEST, DAVIS & COMPANY, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 

Austin, Texas 



WEST, DAVIS & COMPANY 
A LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP 

 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
1 1 8 2 4  JOLLYVILLE  RD,  SUITE 1 0 0    AUSTIN, TEXAS   7 8 7 5 9 – 2 3 2 2 

TELEPHONE    5 1 2 . 9 2 2 . 8 8 0 9    FACSIMILE   5 1 2 . 3 4 0 . 0 3 3 3 
1 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Belvedere Municipal Utility District 
c/o Lloyd, Gosselink, Rochelle & Townsend, PC 
816 Congress Av #1900 
Austin, Texas  78701 
 
We have performed the procedures described below, which were agreed to by you, with respect to 
the accompanying Calculation of Amounts to be Reimbursed to Developers (Schedule A), the 
Comparison of Actual Costs to the Interoffice Memorandum (Schedule B) and Cash 
Reconciliation (Schedule C).  Our report was made for the purpose of providing you with 
information relating to the use of proceeds of the $1,220,000 Belvedere Municipal Utility District 
(District) Unlimited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2018.  The District’s management is responsible for 
the District’s accounting records.  This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in 
accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants.  The sufficiency of the procedures is solely the responsibility of the Board of 
Directors and the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), the specified users of 
this report.  Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures 
described below either for the purpose for which our report has been requested or for any other 
purpose.  The procedures we performed are summarized as follows: 
 

1. Information for the use of proceeds was obtained from the TCEQ order dated 
November 15, 2017 approving the $1,220,000 Bond Issue, which included the 
interoffice staff memorandum. 

2. Information for the costs to be reimbursed to the developers was obtained from the 
inspection of reimbursable costs and related supporting documentation, including 
Amenity Center Appraisal as of February 20, 2018. 

3. Non-construction costs to be funded from this bond issue were obtained from invoices 
and discussions with various parties who are to be reimbursed from this bond issue. 

Because the above procedures do not constitute an examination made in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards, we do not express an opinion on the accompanying schedules.  If we 
had performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would 
have been reported to you.  This report relates only to the attached Schedules A, B and C and does 
not extend to any financial statements of the District taken as a whole.  This report is intended 
solely for the use of the specified users listed above and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than those specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
Austin, Texas 
February 20, 2018 



SCHEDULE A

BELVEDERE MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

CALCULATION OF AMOUNTS TO BE PAID TO DEVELOPER
FROM SERIES 2018 BOND ISSUE PROCEEDS

In Accordance with agreement with Belvedere Municipal Utility District
Dated July 18, 2006

AS OF FEBRUARY 20, 2018

Developer A - Hamilton Bee Cave, LP
% Complete Reimbursable

Description (Date Complete) Cost Interest1

Developer Contribution Items:
JC Evans Construction
Hagy Custom Homes
(Amenity Center) 100%
Appraised Value Dec-06 940,000$    
Less Ineligible Items (Land, Pool, Etc) (508,842)     431,158       

Grounds Control 100%
(Trails-Phase 1) Oct-07 171,326
Less Limit due to Cap on Bond Funding (64,222)       107,104       

Wolff Construction 100%
(Trails-Phase 2) Aug-09 140,875
Less Ineligible Items -              140,875       

XGD Systems 100%
(Trails-2016 Repairs) Mar-16 72,821
Less Ineligible Items -              72,821         

LJA Engineering, Inc. 100%
Engineering, Testing & Inspections 17,559         
Less Ineligible Items -              17,559         

TOTAL DUE DEVELOPER A 769,517       -                   

          TOTAL TO BE PAID FROM SERIES 2018 BOND ISSUE PROCEEDS 769,517$         

Note 1:  The District applied for and was granted by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality an exception to the
             30% Developer Contribution Requirement.  Therefore, these are reimbursed at 100% of the Developer's Cost.

2



Schedule B

Belvedere Municipal Utility District

COMPARISON OF ACTUAL COSTS WITH COST SUMMARY
AS APPROVED BY THE TEXAS  COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Total Total Paid Variance % Variance
Costs Costs Paid Paid and Interoffice Over or Over or

Reimbursed to Directly by Costs Projected Projected Memorandum (Under) (Under)
Cost Item Developers District (1)+(2) Costs (3)+(4) Total (5)-(6) (7)/(6)X100

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Construction Costs

Developer Contribution Items:
Amenity Center 431,158       -               431,158        -            431,158        431,158        -                0%
Trails-Phase 1 107,104       -               107,104        -            107,104        107,104        -                0%
Trails-Phase 2 140,875       -               140,875        140,875        140,875        -                0%
Trails-2016 Repairs 72,821         -               72,821          72,821          72,821          -                0%
Engineering 17,559         -               17,559          17,559          17,559          -                0%
District Items:
Trails-2013 Repairs -               41,495         41,495          41,495          41,495          -                0%
Trails-2014 Repairs -               24,985         24,985          24,985          24,985          -                0%
Amenity Center Improvements -               -               -                210,000     210,000        210,000        -                0%
Trail Improvements -               -               -                40,000       40,000          40,000          -                0%
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COSTS 769,517     66,480       835,997      250,000   1,085,997   1,085,997   -              

Non-Construction Costs
Legal Fees -               24,400         24,400          -            24,400          24,400          -                0%
Financial Advisor Fees -               15,250         15,250          -            15,250          15,250          -                0%
Bond Underwriter's Discount -               22,344         22,344          -            22,344          36,600          (14,256)        -39%
Bond Issuance Costs -               32,335         32,335          -            32,335          12,983          19,352          149%
Bond Application Report -               40,500         40,500          -            40,500          40,500          -                0%
Attorney General Fee-.10% -               1,220           1,220            -            1,220            1,220            -                0%
TCEQ Bond Issuance Fee-.25% -               3,050           3,050            -            3,050            3,050            -                0%
TOTAL NON-CONSTRUCTION COSTS -             139,099     139,099      -           139,099      134,003      5,096          

TOTAL BOND ISSUE 769,517$   205,579$   975,096$    250,000$ 1,225,096$ 1,220,000$ 5,096$        

3



CASH RECEIPTS:
Principal Amount 1,220,000.00$   
Reoffering Premium 10,258.65          
Original Issue Discount (8,169.45)           
Bond Insurance (9,900.00)           
Underwriter's Discount (14,533.10)         

Total Receipts 1,197,656.10     

CASH DISBURSEMENTS:
District's General Fund

Bond Engineering Costs 42,332.23$      
Trails-2013 Repairs 41,495.00        
Trails-2014 Repairs 24,985.00        
Trail Repairs in Excess of 5% Limit to Capital Projects Fund (5,480.00)         
Attorney General Fee 1,220.00          104,552.23        

District's Capital Projects Fund
Amenity Center Improvements 210,000.00      
Trail Improvements 40,000.00        
Trail Repairs in Excess of 5% Limit 5,480.00          
Less Amount Used to Cover Excess Issuance Costs (5,095.20)         250,384.80        

Hamilton Bee Cave, LP
Construction Costs 769,517.00      
Developer Interest -                   769,517.00        

McCall, Parkhurst & Horton
Bond Counsel Fee 24,400.00        
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,589.52          26,989.52          

Specialized Public Finance
Financial Advisory Fee 15,250.00        
Miscellaneous Expenses 5,250.00          20,500.00          

Moody's Investors Service 12,000.00          
S&P Global Market Intelligence 673.00               
Financial Printing Resource 589.55               
I-Deal 1,000.00            
West, Davis and Company

Developer Reimbursement Report 8,000.00            
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 3,050.00            
BOKF, NA 400.00               

Total Cash Disbursements 1,197,656.10     

SURPLUS FUNDS -$                   

SCHEDULE C

BELVEDERE MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

CASH RECONCILIATION SERIES 2018 BOND ISSUE
AS OF FEBRUARY 20, 2018

4



EXHIBIT D 

  



BELVEDERE MUD

BOND SERIES 2018

FEBRUARY 2018

DEPOSIT INTO CAPITAL PROJECTS

WIRES / CHECKS FROM CAPITAL PROJFCTS

$ 1,093,103.87

Wire Hamilton 1 Ranch $ 769,517.00

Wire Specialized Public Finance $ 20,500.00

Wire McCall Parkhurst $ 26,989.52

314 West, Davis & Company S 8,000.00

Wire Moody's Investors Service S 12,000.00

312 Financial Printing Source $ 589.55

Wire l-PREO $ 1,000.00

311 S & P Global Market $ 673.00

313 TCEQ s 3,050.00

Total Expenditures: s 842,319.07

BOKF $ 400.00

To be paid when they bill

REMAINING FUNDS FROM BOND ISSUE: s 250,384.80



EXHIBIT E 

  









EXHIBIT F 

  



1
1
1
0

1

1

1

0

1

1

1

5

1

1

2

0

1

1

2

5

1

1

3

0

1

1

3

5

F

I
R

E

F

I
R

E

F

I
R

E

F

I
R

E

68.35'

28.41'

1
.
5
5
'

25.00'

1

8

.
5

0

'

1

8

.
5

0

'

(

T

Y

P

.
)

2

5

.
0

0

'

9

.
0

0

'

(

T

Y

P

.
)

R

2

5

'

R

2

5

'

1
2
.
0
0
'

1
2
.
0
0
'

9

.
0

0

'

9

.
0

0

'

R

3

.

5

0

'

R

2
5
.
0
0
'

PROP. STORAGE

BUILDING AND

WALKWAY

PROP. CRUSHED

GRANITE PARKING

EXIST. SPORT COURT

PROP. PARKING LOT

EXIST.

PARKING

EXIST. COMMUNITY

CENTER

EXIST. TREES

SIZE &

LOCATION TBD

7

PROP. 6' S/W

EXIST. 6' S/W

7

45  L.F.

PROP. HEADWALL

(2 TYP)

PROP. 24" CMP

1101 Capital of Texas Highway South, Building D, Suite 110, Austin, Texas 78746, (512) 327-9204

SHEET:      1 OF 1SCALE:  AS NOTED

DRAWN BY:    RLW

DESIGNED BY:  KWM

JOB NO. 17-031.10

FILE(LAYOUT): O:\17\031\10\PARKING LOT.dwg(11X17(50))

DATE: 2/8/2018

DATE: 2/8/2018

PRELIMINARY DRAWING

FOR PLANNING PURPOSES ONLY

Murfee Engineering Company Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-353

BELVEDERE M.U.D.

AMENITY CENTER

17400 FLAGLER DR., AUSTIN, TX 78738

N
O

:
\
1
7
\
0
3
1
\
1
0
\
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
L
O

T
.
d

w
g

,
 
2
/
8
/
2
0
1
8
 
1
2
:
0
4
:
5
9
 
P

M
,
 
D

W
G

 
T
o

 
P

D
F
.
p

c
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' MIN. WIDTH REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' PREFERRED WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTRA PVMT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFERRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTRA PVMT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFERRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQ'D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approximate Scale in Feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'



EXHIBIT G 

  



Item Quantity Unit Written Price and Description Unit Price Total Price

1 1 EA
Site Preparation, complete and in place, per each, for 
_________________ dollars and ______ cents. $3,690.00 $3,690.00

2 1 EA
Stabilized Construction Entrance, complete and in place, per 
each, for ____________________________ dollars and 
________ cents. $1,500.00 $1,500.00

3 280 CY
Cut 12”, complete and in place, per cubic yard, for 
________________________ Dollars, and _____________ 
cent. $16.00 $4,480.00

4 175 CY
Base 9” select gravel, complete and in place, per cubic yard, for 
________________________ Dollars, and _____________ 
cent. $30.00 $5,250.00

5 6,000 SF
Porous Asphalt, complete and in place, per square feet, for 
________________________ Dollars, and _____________ 
cent. $8.00 $48,000.00

6 60 LF
24" Culvert, complete and in place, per linear foot, for 
________________________ Dollars, and _____________ 
cent. $100.00 $6,000.00

7 2 EA
Headwalls, per each, for _________________ dollars and 
______ cents. $1,200.00 $2,400.00

8 2,285 LF
Silt fence, complete and in place, per linear foot, for 
___________ dollars and _________ cents. $2.25 $5,141.25

9 1,200 SY
Site restoration, complete and in place, per square yard, for 
__________________ Dollars and ______ cents. $2.75 $3,300.00

10 1 EA
Entrance Ramp/Bridge, complete and in place, per each, for 
___________________ dollars and ________ cents. $10,000.00 $10,000.00

11 330 LF
Curb, complete and in place, per linear foot, for ___________ 
dollars and _________ cents. $15.00 $4,950.00

12 400 SF
Striping 8", complete and in place, per square foot, for 
___________ dollars and _________ cents. $4.00 $1,600.00

13 18 LF
Signage, complete and in place, per linear foot, for 
___________ dollars and _________ cents. $65.00 $1,170.00

15 1 EA
Remove/Replace irrigation, complete and in place, per each, for 
___________ dollars and _________ cents. $1,200.00 $1,200.00

$98,681.25

$9,868.13

$108,549.38

$31,000.00

$12,000.00

$2,000.00

$2,400.00

$47,400.00

$155,949.38Total:

Subtotal:

Permitting

Subtotal Construction Costs:

10% Contingency:

Engineering

Surveying:

Construction Administration:

Subtotal:

bcanady
Typewritten text
Belvedere MUD Amenity Center Improvements - Additional Pervious Parking Lot



Item Quantity Unit Written Price and Description Unit Price Total Price

1 1 LS
Site Preparation, complete and in place, per lump sum for 
_________________ dollars and ______ cents.

$1,500.00 $1,500.00

2 30 CY
8" base, complete and in place, per cubic yards, for 
__________________ Dollars, and _____________ cent.

$30.00 $900.00

3 50 CY
14" depth of excavation, complete and in place, per cubic yards, 
for ________________________ Dollars, and _____________ 
cent.

$15.00 $750.00

4 20 CY
6” Decomposed Granite, complete and in place, per cubic yards, 
for ________________________ Dollars, and _____________ 
cent.

$60.00 $1,200.00

5 6 EA
Wheel stops, complete and in place, per each, for 
________________________ Dollars, and _____________ 
cent.

$75.00 $450.00

6 200 LF
Silt fence, complete and in place, per linear foot, for 
___________ dollars and _________ cents.

$2.25 $450.00

7 150 SY
Site restoration, complete and in place, per square yard, for 
__________________ Dollars and ______ cents.

$2.75 $412.50

8 170 LF
Curb for parking lot, complete and in place, per lump sum, for 
__________________ Dollars and ______ cents.

15 $2,550.00

$8,212.50

$821.25

$9,033.75

$1,600.00

$400.00

$2,000.00

$11,033.75

Construction Administration:

Subtotal:

Total:

Subtotal Construction Costs:

10% Contingency:

Subtotal:

Engineering

bcanady
Typewritten text
Belvedere MUD Amenity Center Improvements - Granite Parking Area



Parking Lot $155,949.38

Granite Parking Area $11,033.75

Building
1
$137,500.00

Total of Construction $304,483.13

Notes:

 

1) Final pricing subject to change based on final design and architect

bcanady
Typewritten text
Belvedere MUD Amenity Center Improvements - Summary



EXHIBIT H 

  



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 

February 23, 2018 

 

4701141 1 

JOINT USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN  

BELVEDERE MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

AND  

BELVEDERE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION 

 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

("Agreement") is entered into on _________________, 2018 (the “Effective Date”), between 

BELVEDERE MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT, a municipal utility district operating pursuant to 

Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code, (the "District"), and BELVEDERE HOMEOWNERS 

ASSOCIATION (the “HOA"), a Texas nonprofit corporation (the District and the HOA are each a 

“Party” and are collectively, the “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, Section 49.463 of the Texas Water Code provides that a district is created 

for the purpose of financing, developing, and maintaining recreational facilities for the people in 

the district; 

 

WHEREAS, Section 49.213 of the Texas Water Code provides that a district may 

contract with a public or private entity for the joint ownership and operation of any works, 

improvements, facilities, plants, equipment, and appliances necessary to accomplish any purpose 

or function permitted by a district; 

 

WHEREAS, the District owns the Belvedere Amenity Center, recreational trails, and 

related facilities; 

 

WHEREAS, the HOA serves residents of the District; 

 

WHEREAS, the District and the HOA entered into a Joint Maintenance Agreement 

dated April 20, 2010, and subsequently amended, that provides for funding and joint maintenance 

of landscaping and certain trail maintenance within the Belvedere community (“Original 

Agreement”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the District and the HOA now wish to provide for the operation and 

maintenance of the Belvedere Amenity Center and related facilities, the community trail system, 

and for landscape maintenance within the boundaries of the District. 

 

The District and the HOA now agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. Description of Facilities. The facilities covered by this Agreement are (i) the Belvedere Amenity 

Center, including parking lots and a storage building, but exclusive of the pool facilities and/or pool 

areas, located on _____[include real property description]_______________ and identified on Exhibit 

A (together, the "Belvedere Amenity Center"); and (ii) the landscaping areas located directly adjacent to 

and within the boundaries of the District, as specified in the attached Exhibit B (collectively the 

“Facilities”).  

 



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 

February 23, 2018 

 

4701141 2 

2. Joint Use of Belvedere Amenity Center. The District and the HOA will share use of the 

facilities, including the Belvedere Amenity Center. The Parties agree to cooperate in coordinating 

programs and activities conducted at the Belvedere Amenity Center to avoid conflicting uses and to 

ensure the availability of the Belvedere Amenity Center to the District when required for District 

purposes. The following guidelines will control the use and scheduling of the Belvedere Amenity Center: 

 

A. Scheduling. 
1) The District and the HOA will establish and maintain procedures for scheduling 

the use of the Belvedere Amenity Center. 

2) The HOA will manage the scheduling of all uses of the Belvedere Amenity 

Center on behalf of the District and their residents. 

 

B. Belvedere Amenity Center Use Charges. 

1) The District and the HOA may use the Belvedere Amenity Center free of charge. 

2) The District Board of Directors will determine the charges to District residents or 

others for use of the Belvedere Amenity Center. 

 

3) Belvedere Amenity Center Use Rules. The HOA and the District will jointly 

determine all rules governing the use of the Belvedere Amenity Center.  All 

persons using the Belvedere Amenity Center must abide by federal, state, and 

local laws and regulations, as well as any District policies, rules, and regulations. 

 

 

3. Management, Operation and Maintenance of the Facilities.  The HOA shall use commercially 

reasonable efforts to manage, operate, and maintain the Facilities on behalf of the District.  In particular: 

 

A. The HOA shall employ, or contract for the services a manager to operate and maintain 

the Belvedere Amenity Center;  

 

B. The HOA is responsible for the day-to-day operation of the Belvedere Amenity Center; 

 

C. The HOA shall maintain and repair the Belvedere Amenity Center as necessary to keep 

the Belvedere Amenity Center clean and available for use; and 

 

D. The HOA is responsible for mowing and landscape maintenance for the Facilities.  

 

E. During the term of this Agreement, the District may establish additional requirements or 

standards for the management, operation, and maintenance of the Belvedere Amenity 

Center, and the he HOA shall implement and comply with those requirements or 

standards. 

 

4. Process for Budgeting/Payment for Operations and Maintenance of the Facilities.   

 

A. District Contribution.  The District and HOA agree that the District will provide to the 

HOA an annual payment of $72,000 for the purposes of operation and maintenance of the 

Facilities. 

 

B. Initial Contribution.  The HOA and the District agreement that a pro-rated funding 

amount of $47,000 will be provided to the District for fiscal year 2018, and that the 

District will pay the $25,000 landscaping contribution for fiscal year 2018. 

Commented [SA1]: These fees will be determined in 

conjunction with the HOA, but will need to be adopted by the 
District. 

Commented [SA2]: These rules will be decided in conjunction 

with the HOA (likely using what is in place now), but will need to 
be adopted by the District as the HOA is operating the amenity 

center on behalf of the District.  



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 

February 23, 2018 

 

4701141 3 

 

C. Budget Estimate.  Beginning with calendar year 2018, no later than August 1st of each 

calendar year, the HOA shall submit to each District: 

1) a written financial summary of the actual costs and expenses associated with 

managing, operating, maintaining, and repairing the Facilities, as well as the HOA's 

funding sources, for that current (partial) District fiscal year, reconciled with the 

approved budget for that District fiscal year; and 

2) a proposed, written budget for the subsequent District fiscal year (commencing on 

October 1st of that calendar year (“Proposed Budget”), estimating: 

i. the costs and expenses associated with managing, operating, maintaining, 

and repairing the Belvedere Amenity Center and the other Facilities as 

required under this Agreement (“Costs”), as well as the HOA's funding 

sources; and 

ii. the total amount the District should pay for its share of the Costs (the 

“District Allocation”). 

 

In preparing the Proposed Budget, the HOA will also include any known and 

measurable changes in the Costs for the upcoming District fiscal year. 

 

 

B. Board Consideration.  The Board of Directors of each District will review and vote on the 

HOA’s Proposed Budget as a part of the District's budget preparation and approval 

process for the District's annual budget.   

 

C. True-up Process.  Not later than July 1st of each calendar year, the HOA will provide the 

District with a final, complete financial summary he actual costs and expenses associated 

with managing, operating, maintaining, and repairing the Facilities for the recently 

completed District fiscal year, reconciled with the payments from the District to the HOA 

for that District fiscal year.  Based on this information , the HOA and the District will 

review and determine the District Allocation. 

 

D. Payments.  The District will pay the approved District Allocation, to the extent approved 

by the District not later than March 31st of each calendar year.   

 

E. Management of District Funds.  The HOA shall maintain all funds contributed by the 

District under this Agreement in a separate bank account (“District Account”) insured by 

the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) and held in a separate bank from 

the bank used by the HOA for its own funds.  The District Account will be maintained to 

remain within FDIC insurable limits.  In the event that the balance of the District Account 

exceeds FDIC insurance levels, then the HOA shall notify the District immediately so 

that they can work together to reach a solution that fully insures such funds. 

 

F. Quarterly Reports.  The HOA agrees to provide the District with quarterly reports of the 

actual Costs the HOA has incurred in the previous quarter and will include District 

Account activity in each report.  

 

G. Annual Review.  The District will have the right to have the District Account and 

expenses managed by the HOA reviewed annually by a certified public accountant. Such 

a review will be performed no less than once every three years. 

 



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 

February 23, 2018 

 

4701141 4 

5. Trail System.  The HOA shall be responsible for engaging a contractor to provide 

maintenance to the District trail system (the “Trail System”) as shown in Exhibit 

“C” to this Agreement.  The HOA shall engage the contractor to perform these 

services as a component of the Landscape Services Agreement. 

A. Funding.  The District will contribute to the funding of maintenance of the Trail 

System on a project-by-project basis.   

B. Project Approval.   

1) For routine non-emergency maintenance of the Trail System, the HOA 

shall submit to the District a project scope and cost estimate for 

maintenance tasks to be performed.   The District shall consider each 

request from the HOA and shall, if in the Board’s reasonable discretion 

such maintenance is needed or appropriate, authorize the financial 

contribution to be provided to the HOA for the cost of the maintenance 

project.   

2) Notwithstanding, the District shall within 14 days of the date of this 

agreement, contribute an amount not to exceed $10,000 for initial general 

trail maintenance, including the replacement of trail materials (the “Initial 

Project”).  Needed work in excess of that shall be submitted to the District 

for approval. 

C. Emergency Conditions.  If an emergency condition exists within the Trail System 

that the HOA reasonably believes is a threat to the health and safety of District 

residents, the HOA may perform the work and submit receipts to the District for 

reimbursement. The scope of this emergency maintenance must be presented to 

the Board of Directors at its next regular Board of Directors meeting for 

reimbursement approval, which may not be unreasonably withheld.  If the HOA 

determines that such an emergency condition exists on the Trail System, the HOA 

may close any portion of the Trail System with an emergency condition until 

emergency maintenance has been completed.  The HOA shall promptly provide 

notice to the District of any closure, and shall re-open the trail as soon as 

reasonably possible after the emergency condition is remedied 

 
6. Prior Approval.  The Parties acknowledge that the District are subject to state laws 

regarding the bidding and contracting for certain projects.  The HOA will execute all 

contracts initiated by the HOA in carrying out its duties under this Agreement in the name of 

the HOA; provided, however, that if any budgeted expenditure is expected to exceed $20,000, 

or any unbudgeted expenditure is expected to exceed $10,000 (“Large Expenditure”), then 

(i) the HOA shall not make the Large Expenditure without prior approval from the District, 

and (ii) the District have the right to bid and contract with the third party for the work 

directly.  In the event that the HOA becomes aware that a Large Expenditure may be 

necessary, then it will provide written notice of the potential Large Expenditure to the District 

immediately so that the District can evaluate such Large Expenditure.  The District is not 

obligated to participate in funding outside of the District Allocation for a Large Expenditure 

where the HOA did not provide prior notice to the District.  

 

7. Assessed Fees.  To the extent that District residents or others are charged a fee to reserve 

Belvedere Amenity Center space, the HOA will use half of the fee for Belvedere Amenity 

Center maintenance, cleaning, and administration costs associated with such rental. The HOA 



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 

February 23, 2018 

 

4701141 5 

will retain the other half of such fees on behalf of the District to be set aside for future 

replacement of furniture at the Belvedere Amenity Center. Such funds will deposited in the 

District Account and will be accounted for in any reports to the District as offsets to the 

District’ payment obligations under this Agreement. 

 

8. Insurance.  The District agrees that it will maintain casualty insurance coverage for the 

Facilities and the Trail System.  

 

The HOA, at its own expense, will maintain casualty insurance coverage (i) for its facilities, 

including, but not limited to, the pool facilities, common areas owned by the HOA, and 

related equipment and furniture, and (ii) for claims by its employees as follows: 

 

A. casualty insurance against loss or damage by fire; 

B. liability insurance that protects the HOA in all events with a limit of coverage not less 

than one million dollars ($1,000,000); and  

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance as required by law for HOA employees. Any HOA 

contractor must also maintain Workers’ Compensation as required by law.  

  

The HOA may provide the required insurance as part of "blanket" coverage maintained on its 

other assets. The HOA shall name the District as additional insureds on all policies of the 

HOA for claims related to the pool facilities and related equipment and furniture, or any 

HOA equipment and furniture maintained in the Facilities, including the Belvedere Amenity 

Center. Upon each insurance renewal date, the HOA will deliver to the District a certificate 

evidencing the required insurance coverage. The HOA will promptly provide the District with 

written notice of any potential liability and will make available to the District all related 

information and documentation. The HOA shall name as an additional insured on all policies 

of the HOA relating to the Facilities. 

 

9. Hold Harmless and Indemnification. The HOA shall indemnify, defend and hold the 

District harmless from all liability related to injury to persons or damage to property resulting 

or arising from the use of the Facilities and the Trail System by the HOA or from the HOA-

sponsored activities using the Facilities or the Trail System. The indemnification arising 

under this paragraph will survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason. 

 

10. Term of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement is ten (10) years, and will automatically 

renew for subsequent five (5) year terms unless earlier terminated by a Party or unless a Party 

provides the other Parties written notice of non-renewal at least thirty (30) days prior to the 

end of then-current term. 

 

11. Termination.  

 

D. Any Party may terminate this Agreement at any time by providing at least six (6) months’ 

written notice to the other Parties. 

 

E. Any Party may terminate this Agreement for default if another Party fails to perform any 

material provision of this Agreement and the failure to perform continues for 90 days 

after written notice by the terminating Party to the defaulting Party. After the 90-day 

period, the terminating Party may terminate the Agreement by providing 10 days’ written 

notice to the other parties.  

 



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 

February 23, 2018 

 

4701141 6 

12. Notices. The Parties will provide all notices and other communications under this Agreement 

to the other Parties in writing by United States registered mail or electronic mail and 

addressed as follows: 

 

The District: 

Belvedere Municipal Utility District 

c/o Stefanie Albright 

Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C. 

816 Congress Ave., Suite 1900 

Austin, Texas 78701 

(phone) 512-322-5814 

(fax) 512-472-0532 

(email) salbright@lglawfirm.com 

 

The HOA: 

   

  __________________ 

 

  __________________ 

 

  ___________________ 

 

Any Party may change its address or contact person by giving written notice to the other 

parties. 

 

 

13. Governing Law/Venue.  This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Texas. All 

obligations of the Parties under this agreement are performable in Travis County, Texas, and 

exclusive jurisdiction for claims arising from the Agreement will lie with the courts of Travis 

County, Texas. 

 

14. Construction/Merger.  Any amendment to the terms of this Agreement must be in a writing 

duly executed by the parties. In the event a provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, 

illegal, or unenforceable, the Agreement will be construed as if the invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable provision is absent from the Agreement. All other terms will continue in full 

force and effect. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties regarding the 

subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreements or 

representations of the parties as to the subject matter. Section headings are for ease of 

reference only and will not affect interpretation of the Agreement. 

 

15. Waivers.  All waivers of a breach of a Party’s obligation under this Agreement must be in 

writing to be effective.  Any Party’s failure to complain of a breach by another Party will not 

constitute a waiver of any current or future breach of the obligation. 

 

16. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by any Party without the prior written 

consent of the other Parties.  This Agreement will be binding on, and inure to the benefit of, 

the parties to this Agreement and their respective successors and assigns.  No assignment will 

relieve the assigning Party of its obligations under this Agreement unless agreed by the non-

assigning Party or Parties in writing.  

 



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 

February 23, 2018 

 

4701141 7 

17. Multiple Counterparts. The parties may execute this Agreement in separate counterparts, 

each of which will be an original and all of which will constitute the same document.  A Party 

may execute this Agreement by faxed or electronic signature, and the other Parties may treat 

the faxed or electronic signature as an original. 

 

18. Termination of Original Agreement.  Upon final execution of this Agreement, the Parties 

agree that the Original Agreement shall be immediately terminated and of no further force 

and effect. 

 

 

The Parties execute this Agreement effective on the Effective Date. 

 

[Signature pages to follow] 

 

  



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 

February 23, 2018 

 

4701141 8 

EXHIBIT A 

 

BELVEDERE AMENITY CENTER MAP (AND ASSOCIATED FACILITIES) 

 

Included in map: 

1.  Amenity Center (note to specifically exclude the pool) 

2.  Parking Lots 

3.  Storage building 

  



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 

February 23, 2018 

 

4701141 9 

EXHIBIT B 

 

LANDSCAPING AREAS 

 

1. Show common areas (designate MUD areas and HOA areas) 

2. Include landscaping around Amenity Center, parking lots, and storage building 

  



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 

February 23, 2018 

 

4701141 10 

EXHIBIT C 

 

BELVEDERE TRAIL SYSTEM 

 



EXHIBIT I 

  



Amenity Center and Landscaping Cost Sharing Agreement

2017 HOA

Category Budget MUD % MUD $

Insurance $6,936 33 $2,289
Electric $10,200 33 $3,366
Water $23,000 33 $7,590
Phone/Internet/Cable $7,800 66 $5,148
A/C Cleaning $6,600 100 $6,600
A/C Supplies $1,500 100 $1,500

Landscaping(A/C & Common) $107,683 28.5 $30,718
Maintenance $30,000 33 $10,000
Contingency/Storage $15,000 33 $5,000

Total Paid to HOA Annually $72,211


